
The Gt Northern Railway Low and High Level Lines to Grantham 
 
On 15 July 1850, the Ambergate, Nottingham, Boston and Eastern Junction Railway Company (the Ambergate) 
opened a line from Grantham to a junction with the Midland Railway line at Colwick; the line never reached 
Ambergate or Boston. !ǘ /ƻƭǿƛŎƪΣ ǘǊŀƛƴǎ ǘƘŜƴ Ǌŀƴ ƻƴ ǘƘŜ aƛŘƭŀƴŘ wŀƛƭǿŀȅΩǎ ǘǊŀŎƪ ƛƴǘƻ bƻǘǘƛƴƎƘŀƳ aƛŘƭŀƴŘ 
Station on Station Street ς the current station on Carrington Street did not open until 1904.  
 
In 1852 the Gt Northern opened its northern section of the East Coast Mainline from Peterborough to Retford 
via Grantham and NewarkΦ ¢ƘŜ Dǘ bƻǊǘƘŜǊƴ ƘŀŘ ǊǳƴƴƛƴƎ ǊƛƎƘǘǎ ƻǾŜǊ ǘƘŜ !ƳōŜǊƎŀǘŜΩǎ ƭƛƴŜ and fast express 
trains from London to Nottingham were advertised using Gt Northern trains. These were quicker than those on 
the Midland Railway route, which upset the Midland somewhat. The first Gt Northern express engine to arrive 
ƛƴ bƻǘǘƛƴƎƘŀƳ ŦǊƻƳ [ƻƴŘƻƴ ǿŀǎ ΨŎŀǇǘǳǊŜŘΩ ŀǘ aƛŘƭŀƴŘ {ǘŀǘƛƻƴ ŀƴŘ ƭƻŎƪŜŘ ƛƴ ŀ ǎƘŜŘ ǿƘŜǊŜ ƛǘ ǎǘƻƻŘ ŦƻǊ ǎŜǾŜƴ 
months until the dispute was resolved in court.  
 
The Gt Northern ran the Ambergate line from 1855 and eventually it was decided to build a new station in 
Nottingham. In 1856 a new line from Colwick to London Road, Nottingham was built, terminating at a new 
station designed by the architect TC Hine. The station opened on 3 October 1857 and was called London Road 
Station. In 1861 the line was leased formally to the Gt Northern.  
 

The new line ran parallel to the Midland line out of Nottingham and joined the line to Grantham at Netherfield 
WǳƴŎǘƛƻƴΦ !ƭǘƘƻǳƎƘ ƛǘ ǿŀǎ ƭŀǘŜǊ ŎŀƭƭŜŘ ǘƘŜ Ψƭƻǿ ƭŜǾŜƭ ƭƛƴŜΩ, after leaving London Road station it was an elevated 
line over Meadow Lane and Trent Lane. At Colwick, the line linked with ǘƘŜ Dǘ bƻǊǘƘŜǊƴΩǎ 5ŜǊōȅǎƘƛǊŜ 
extension, later called the Back Line, which opened in 1875 to Derby Friargate via Gedling, Mapperley Tunnel, 
Daybrook and Basford. The Gt Northern also built a massive marshalling yard at Netherfield to handle coal 
trains from the Derbyshire and Nottinghamshire coal fields.  With these developments the Gt Northern was 
now able to compete with the Midland Railway, with fast express trains to London, access to the east coast 
holiday resorts and, more importantly, better access to the profitable coal trade from the regionΩs coal mines.   
 
The Back Line route from Nottingham to Derby via Gelding was a long way around but this problem was 
addressed when the Suburban line opened, shortening the journey from Trent Lane to Daybrook by three 
miles.    



The Suburban line opened in December 1889, worked by the Gt Northern. From Trent Lane Junction the line 
ǘǳǊƴŜŘ ƴƻǊǘƘ ǘƻǿŀǊŘǎ {ƴŜƛƴǘƻƴΣ ¢ƘƻǊƴŜȅǿƻƻŘΣ {ǘ !ƴƴΩǎΣ {ƘŜǊǿƻƻŘ ŀƴŘ 5ŀȅōǊƻƻƪ where it linked up with the 
Back Line to Derby. The route was steep and difficult to work, and the introduction in 1901 of cheap electric 
ǘǊŀƳǎ ǘƻ {ƘŜǊǿƻƻŘ ŀƴŘ {ǘ !ƴƴΩǎ took away much of its passenger traffic. The stations on the line closed in 
1916 but the line continued to serve Mapperley Brick Works until closure in the 1960s.  
 
In 1893 the Manchester, Sheffield and Lincolnshire Railway Company (MSL) began building a London Extension 
from Annesley to London, passing through Nottingham. This later became known as the Gt Central, which 
opened to goods traffic in 1898. The MSL had worked with the Gt Northern since the early 1850s and they now 
shared services at Nottingham Victoria Station which opened to passenger traffic on 24 May 1900.    
 
The Gt Northern built a new line from Trent Lane to Weekday Cross to allow trains from Grantham and the 
east coast to enter Victoria Station via the tunnel under Victoria Street and Thurland Street. This line became 
known as the High Level line and included a station at London Road (below), just north of the original Low 
Level station which became a parcels depot. All Gt Northern passenger traffic going east towards Grantham 
was moved to Victoria Station, although you could catch trains at London Road High Level station which 
opened in March 1899. The High Level and Low Level lines merged at Trent Lane Junction on the way to 
Netherfield. 

The Gt Northern also built links with the Gt Central at Basford providing faster access to Derby along the Back 
Line, shortening the journey to Derby by six miles, adding another nail in the coffin of the Suburban Railway.  
 
By 1963 most local services on the Gt Central had closed. In 1965 British Rail installed a link at Netherfield to 
the old Midland RailǿŀȅΩǎ [ƛƴŎƻƭƴ ƭƛƴŜΦ Trains to and from Grantham then used the Midland line in and out of 
Nottingham Midland Station, as they do today. In 1966, the northern part of the Gt Central closed and by early 
1968 Victoria station had been demolished. London Road High Level station closed in 1967 but the Low Level 
station remained in use as a parcels depot until 1989 and is now a health and leisure centre. The High Level 
station (above) was demolished in 2006.  
 
Today (2020), there is very little left of the High Level and Low Level linesΦ !ǇŀǊǘ ŦǊƻƳ ¢/ IƛƴŜΩǎ ƳŀƎƴƛŦƛŎŜƴǘ 
London Road station, only a footpath along the old track bed from Meadow Lane towards Colwick and a few 
bridge-supports at Trent Lane remain. The line of the old track to Netherfield is now part of the extended A612 
Daleside Road East alongside Nottingham Racecourse.  
 



The map below shows the relative position of the various railway lines up until nationalisation in 1948. It 
shows clearly how the opening of the Gt Central (green) with its links to the Gt Northern line (black) at Basford 
shortened the journey to Derby (by six miles), avoiding the need to go all the way around via Gedling and 
Daybrook.    

The map below shows the railways around Nottingham in 2020. Apart from the Grantham line, the lines used 
today are those built by the Midland Railway before 1880. Netherfield and Colwick station is now called 
Netherfield, and Carlton & Netherfield station is now called Carlton.  



Gt Northern Low Level line 

 
CƛǊǎǘΣ ǿŜ ǿƛƭƭ ƭƻƻƪ ŀǘ ǘƘŜ [ƻǿ [ŜǾŜƭ ƭƛƴŜ ƻǳǘ ƻŦ bƻǘǘƛƴƎƘŀƳΩǎ [ƻƴŘƻƴ wƻŀŘ {ǘŀǘƛƻƴ ǘƘŀǘ ƻǇŜƴŜŘ ƛƴ мурт 
¢/ IƛƴŜΩǎ [ƻƴŘƻƴ wƻŀŘ {ǘŀǘƛƻƴΣ ǎŜŜƴ here in 1880, has many typical Hine features, such as the criss-cross 
ǇŀǘǘŜǊƴ ƛƴ ǘƘŜ ōǊƛŎƪǿƻǊƪ ŀƴŘ ǘƘŜ ōǳƛƭŘƛƴƎΩǎ ǎȅƳƳŜǘǊȅΦ 9ƭŀƛƴŜ IŀǊǿƻƻŘ ŘŜǎŎǊƛōŜǎ ƛǘ ƛƴ ƘŜǊ ōƻƻƪΣ Nottingham: 
Pevsner Architectural GuidesΣ ŀǎ ƘŀǾƛƴƎΣ ά±ŜƴŜǘƛŀƴ ǿƛƴŘƻǿǎΣ CǊŜƴŎƘ ƎŀōƭŜs and a pavilion turret behind a deep 
porte cochere; long shallow wings eƛǘƘŜǊ ǎƛŘŜ ǿƛǘƘ IƛƴŜΩǎ ŘƛǎǘƛƴŎǘƛǾŜ ǿƘƛǘŜ ƘŜŀŘŜǊ ŎƻǊƴƛŎŜ ōŜƘƛƴŘέΦ It is a 
Grade II listed building. 
 
The picture below shows the station in 1980, still intact but somewhat neglected. Between 1998 and 2001 it 
was restored by Marsh Grochowski and converted by Coleman Architects into a health club. It is now the 
Virgin Active gym and also contains a number of smaller units, including a hairdresser and a manicure salon.  

  



The 1884 OS Map extract above shows the scale of the site that was London Road Low Level station. The main 
pedestrian entrance was on the north side, accessed from London Road via a small road now called The Great 
Northern Close. ¢ƘŜ ƭƛƴŜ ǊǳƴƴƛƴƎ ŀƭƻƴƎ ǘƘŜ ǎƛŘŜ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŎŀƴŀƭΩǎ tƻǇƭŀǊ !ǊƳΣ ƴƻǊǘƘ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ Ǝŀǎ ǿƻǊƪǎΣ later became 
part of the High Level line, built in 1898. The line turning south past the Hide, Skin & Fat Market was the 
Midland line to Melton Mowbray. The Gt Northern (GN) Goods Shed is still standing, albeit derelict. The shed 
was designed by TC Hine and is a Grade II listed building.  

(Above) This picture shows the layout on the ground. All of the lines to the right of the telegraph poles 
belonged to the Midland Railway, with the Melton Mowbray line curving off to the right. Most of the sidings to 
the left of the signal box are still in place, part of East Midlands wŀƛƭǿŀȅǎΩ Eastcroft Light Maintenance Depot.  
 
The Gt Northern Main Line is that to the left of the telegraph poles, heading due east towards the southern 
end of Manvers Street and on to Meadow Lane. In 1900, when Gt Northern passenger services moved to 
Victoria Station, a few London & North Western Railway (L&NWR) passenger trains continued to use the Low 
Level station for trains to Northampton. This continued until World War 2 (1939-45) when these services were 
also moved to Victoria.  
 


